

misrepresentations or engaged in lack of candor; whether BOI willfully or repeatedly violated section 258 of the Act and the related Commission rules by changing consumer's preferred carriers without their authorization; whether BOI willfully or repeatedly failed to file a Registration Statement in violation of section 64.1195 of the Commission's rules; whether BOI willfully or repeatedly discontinued service without Commission authorization; whether the BOI's blanket section 214 authorization should be revoked; and whether specific Commission authorization should be required for BOI, or the principal or principals of BOI, to provide any interstate common carrier services in the future.

### C. Conclusion

23. In light of the totality of the information now before us, an evidentiary hearing is warranted to determine whether the continued operation of BOI as a common carrier would serve the public convenience and necessity within the meaning of section 214 of the Act. Further, due to the egregious nature of BOI's apparently unlawful activities, BOI will be required to show cause why an order to cease and desist from the provision of any interstate common carrier services without the prior consent of the Commission should not be issued. In addition, consistent with our practice in revocation proceedings, the hearing will also address whether a forfeiture should be levied against BOI.

### Ordering Clauses

24. Pursuant to sections 4(i) and 214 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. §§ 154(i) and 214, the principal or principals of Business Options, Inc. are directed to show cause why the operating authority bestowed on Business Options, Inc. pursuant to section 214 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, should not be revoked.

25. Pursuant to section 312(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(b), the principal or principals of Business Options, Inc. are directed to show cause why an order directing them to cease and desist from the provision of any interstate common carrier services without the prior consent of the Commission should not be issued.

26. The hearing shall be held at a time and location to be specified by the Chief Administrative Law Judge in a subsequent order. The ALJ shall apply the conclusions of law set forth in this

Order to the findings that he makes in that hearing, upon the following issues:

(a) to determine whether Business Options, Inc. made misrepresentations or engaged in lack of candor;

(b) to determine whether Business Options, Inc. changed consumers' preferred carrier without their authorization in willful or repeated violation of section 258 of the Act and sections 64.1100–1190 of the Commission's rules;

(c) to determine whether Business Options, Inc. failed to file Form FCC 499–A in willful or repeated violation of section 64.1195 of the Commission's rules;

(d) to determine whether Business Options, Inc. discontinued service without Commission authorization in willful or repeated violation of section 214 of the Act and sections 63.71 and 63.505 of the Commission's rules;

(e) to determine, in light of all the foregoing, whether Business Options, Inc.'s authorization pursuant to section 214 of the Act to operate as a common carrier should be revoked;

(f) to determine whether, in light of all the foregoing, Business Options, Inc., and/or its principals should be ordered to cease and desist from the provision of any interstate common carrier services without the prior consent of the Commission;

27. The Chief, Enforcement Bureau, shall be a party to the designated hearing. Both the burden of proceeding and the burden of proof shall be upon the Enforcement Bureau as to issues (a) through (f) inclusive.

28. To avail themselves of the opportunity to be heard, the principal or principals of Business Options, Inc., pursuant to section 1.91(c) of the Commission's rules, shall file with the Commission within 30 days of the mailing of this Order to Show Cause and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing a written appearance stating that a principal or other legal representative from Business Options, Inc. will appear at the hearing and present evidence on the matters specified in the Show Cause Order. If Business Options, Inc. fail to file a written appearance within the time specified, Business Options, Inc.'s right to a hearing shall be deemed to be waived. In the event that the right to a hearing is waived, the Presiding Judge, or the Chief, Administrative Law Judge if no Presiding Judge has been designated, shall terminate the hearing proceeding as to that entity and certify this case to the Commission in the regular course of business, and an appropriate order shall be entered.

29. If it is determined that BOI has willfully or repeatedly violated any

provision of the Act or the Commission's rules cited in the Order to Show Cause and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, it shall be further determined whether an Order for Forfeiture shall be issued pursuant to section 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, in the amount of no more than: (a) \$80,000 for each unauthorized conversion of complainants' long distance service in violation of 47 U.S.C. 258 and 47 CFR 64.1120; (b) \$3,000 for the failure to file a sworn statement or a Registration Statement in violation of a Commission directive and 47 CFR 64.1195; and (c) \$120,000 for the unauthorized discontinuance of service to a community in violation of 47 U.S.C. 214 and 47 CFR 63.71 and 63.505.

30. This document constitutes a notice of opportunity for hearing pursuant to section 503(b)(3)(A) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(3)(A), for the potential forfeiture liability outlined above.

31. *It is further ordered* that a copy of this order to show cause and notice of opportunity for hearing shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to Kurtis Kintzel, President and Chairman of the Board of Business Options, Inc., 8380 Louisiana Street, Merrillville, Indiana 46410–6312.

Federal Communications Commission.

**Marlene H. Dortch,**

*Secretary.*

[FR Doc. 03–10521 Filed 4–28–03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6712–01–P

---

## FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

### Formations of, Acquisitions by, and Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice have applied to the Board for approval, pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 *et seq.*) (BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR Part 225), and all other applicable statutes and regulations to become a bank holding company and/or to acquire the assets or the ownership of, control of, or the power to vote shares of a bank or bank holding company and all of the banks and nonbanking companies owned by the bank holding company, including the companies listed below.

The applications listed below, as well as other related filings required by the Board, are available for immediate inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated. The application also will be available for inspection at the offices of the Board of Governors. Interested

persons may express their views in writing on the standards enumerated in the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). If the proposal also involves the acquisition of a nonbanking company, the review also includes whether the acquisition of the nonbanking company complies with the standards in section 4 of the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1843). Unless otherwise noted, nonbanking activities will be conducted throughout the United States. Additional information on all bank holding companies may be obtained from the National Information Center Web site at [www.ffiec.gov/nic/](http://www.ffiec.gov/nic/).

Unless otherwise noted, comments regarding each of these applications must be received at the Reserve Bank indicated or the offices of the Board of Governors not later than May 14, 2003.

**A. Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City** (James Hunter, Assistant Vice President) 925 Grand Avenue, Kansas City, Missouri 64198-0001:

1. *Gemini Bancshares, Inc.*, Monument, Colorado; to acquire up to 17.45 percent of the voting shares of Gemini Bancshares, Monument, Colorado, and thereby indirectly acquire voting shares of Integrity Bank & Trust, Monument, Colorado.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, April 24, 2003.

**Robert deV. Frierson,**

*Deputy Secretary of the Board.*

[FR Doc. 03-10563 Filed 4-28-03; 8:45 am]

**BILLING CODE 6210-01-S**

## FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

### Formations of, Acquisitions by, and Mergers of Bank Holding Companies; Correction

This notice corrects a notice (FR Doc. 03-9970) published on page 20000 of the issue for Wednesday, April 23, 2003.

Under the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City heading, the entry for One Rich Hill Mining LLC, and One Rich Hill Land Ltd., Partnership, both of Tulsa, Oklahoma, is revised to read as follows:

**A. Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City** (Susan Zubratt, Assistant Vice President) 925 Grand Avenue, Kansas City, Missouri 64198-0001:

1. *One Rich Hill Mining LLC; and One Rich Hill Land Ltd., Partnership*, both of Fort Worth, Texas; to become bank holding companies by acquiring 25.44 percent of the voting shares of F&M Bancorporation, and thereby indirectly acquire shares of F&M Bank & Trust Company, both in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Comments on this application must be received by May 16, 2003.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, April 24, 2003.

**Robert deV. Frierson,**

*Deputy Secretary of the Board.*

[FR Doc. 03-10564 Filed 4-28-03; 8:45 am]

**BILLING CODE 6210-01-S**

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

### President's Advisory Commission on Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders; Notice of Meeting

In accordance with section 10(a)(2) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (Pub. L. 92-463), announcement is made of the following National Advisory body scheduled to conduct a public meeting during the month of May 2003.

*Name:* President's Advisory Commission on Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders (Commission).

*Date and Time:*

Wednesday, May 7, 2003; 1 p.m.–5 p.m. e.s.t.

Thursday, May 8, 2003; 9 a.m.–3:30 p.m. e.s.t.

*Location:* Holiday Inn Georgetown, 2101 Wisconsin Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20007.

The meeting is open to the public.

The President's Advisory Commission on AAPIs will conduct a public meeting on May 7, 2003, from 1 p.m. to 5 p.m. and May 8, 2003, from 9 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. e.s.t. inclusive.

Agenda items will include, but may not be limited to: Preliminary highlights from the President's Advisory Commission Report in the subject area of health; presentations on the subject area of economic and community development, administrative tasks; deadlines; upcoming events; and comments from the public.

The purpose of the Commission is to advise and make recommendations to the President on ways to increase opportunities for and improve the quality of life of approximately 13 million Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders living in the United States and the U.S.-associated Pacific Island jurisdictions, especially those who are most underserved.

Requests to address the Commission must be made in writing and should include the name, address, telephone number and business or professional affiliation of the interested party. Individuals or groups addressing similar issues are encouraged to combine comments and make their request to address the Commission through a single representative. The White House Initiative's office will adjust the allocation of time for remarks to

accommodate the level of expressed interest. Written requests must be faxed to (301) 443-0259.

Anyone who has interest in joining any portion of the meeting or who requires additional information about the Commission should contact: Ms. Betty Lam or Mr. Erik F. Wang, Office of the White House Initiative on AAPIs, Parklawn Building, Room 10-42, 5600 Fishers Lane, Rockville, MD 20857, Telephone (301) 443-2492. Anyone who requires special assistance, such as sign language interpretation or other reasonable accommodations, should contact Mr. Wang no later than April 30, 2003.

Dated: April 22, 2003.

**Regina Schofield,**

*Director, Office of Intergovernmental Affairs.*

[FR Doc. 03-10587 Filed 4-24-03; 4:58 pm]

**BILLING CODE 4165-15-P**

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

### Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry

[ATSDR-192]

### Announcement of Final Priority Data Needs for 10 Priority Hazardous Substances

**AGENCY:** Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR), U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

**ACTION:** Notice.

**SUMMARY:** This Notice announces the final priority data needs for 10 priority hazardous substances (see attached Table 1) as part of the continuing development and implementation of the ATSDR Substance-Specific Applied Research Program (SSARP). The Notice also serves as a continuous call for voluntary research proposals. The SSARP is authorized by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (Superfund) or CERCLA, and amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) [42 U.S.C. 9604(i)].

At the time the SSARP was initiated on October 17, 1991, a list of priority data needs for 38 priority hazardous substances was announced in the **Federal Register** (56 FR 52178). The list was subsequently revised based on public comments and published in final form on November 16, 1992 (57 FR 54150). In 1997, ATSDR finalized the priority data needs for a second list of 12 substances that was subsequently announced in the **Federal Register** (62 FR 40820).